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1. NAME OF PROPERTY 
j NATIONAL PAflRStHVlUb 

00 

HISTORIC NAME: Levi-Topletz House 
OTHER NAME/SHE NUMBER: Phasc IV-East Dallas DAL/DA 9 

2. LOCATION 

STREET & NUMBER: 2603 Martin Ludier King, Jr. Blvd. 
d iY OR TOWN: DaUas 
STATE: Texas CODE: TX COUNTY: Dallas 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION: N/A 
viaNirY: N/A 

CODE: 113 ZIP CODE: 75214 

3. STATE/FEDERAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION 

A5 the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, I hereby certify that this _x_noiaination 
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of 

Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property 
x meets does not meet the National Register criteria. I recommend that this property be considered significant nationalfy 
_statewide x locally. ( See continuation sheet for additional comments.) 

Signature of certifyin^'^^cial 

State Historic Preservation Officer, Texas Historical Comnussion 

State or Federal agency and bureau 

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. 
( See continuation sheet for additional comments.) 

Date 

Signature of commenting or other official Date 

State or Federal agency and bureau 

4. NATIONAL PARK SERVICE CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that this property is: 

V entered in the National Register 
_ See continuation sheet. 

determined eligible for the National Register 
_ See continuation sheet. 

determined not eligible for the National Register 

removed from the National Register 

other (explain): 

dre^fhe J 

l lat lonal Begister 

Date of Action 

3- 2 V 9 ^ 
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5. CLASSinCATION 

OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTY: Private 

CATEGORY OF PROPERTY: Building 

NUMBER OF RESOURCES WHHIN PROPERTY: CONTRIBUTING 

1 
0 
0 
0 

NONCONTRIBUTING 

0 BUILDINGS 
0 SUES 
0 STRUCTURES 
0 OBJECTS 

1 0 TOTAL 

NUMBER OF CONTRIBUTING RESOURCES PREVIOUSLY LISTED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER: 0 

NAME OF RELATED MULTIPLE PROPERTY LISTING: Historic and Architectural Resources of East and Soudi 
Dallas, Dallas County, Texas 

6. FUNCTION OR USE 

HISTORIC FUNCTIONS: DOMESTIC: Single DwelUng 

CURRENT FUNCTIONS: DOMESTIC: Single DwelUng 

7. DESCRIPTION 

ARCHTTECTURAL CLASSIFICATION: LATE 19TH AND 20TH CENTURY REVIVALS: ItaUan 
Renaissance 

MATERIALS: FOUNDATION Brick 
WALLS Brick 
ROOF Ceramic TUe 
OTHER Concrete; Wood; Glass 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION (see continuation sheets 7-5). 
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Description 

The Levi-Topletz House is a large 2 1/2-story brick domestic buUding at 2603 Martin 
Luther King Jr. Boulevard (MLK). It is an architectural hybrid, displaying elements 
characteristic of both the Italian Renaissance and Prairie School styles. The house has a 
modified rectangular plan and a box-like massing with brick exterior waUs. The low-pitched 
hipped roof is covered with red ceranuc tUes, and a balconied 1-story portico dominates the 
facade. The house is in a mixed residential/commercial area that includes a scattering of 
simUarly detailed and scaled residences, along with many post-World War n commercial 
buildings. The house is on a comer lot that slopes toward MLK. The Levi-Topletz House is 
in good condition and remains virtually unchanged since its completion c.1914. 

The Levi-Topletz House stands at the northeast intersection of MLK and Atianta 
Street. The land is elevated above street level and slopes gentiy toward MLK. The house, 
according to Sanbom maps, has brick-veneer exterior walls over wood-frame constmction. 
A broad, low-pitched hipped roof with red ceramic tUe crowns the building. The house has 
a modified rectangular buUding footprint. 

The front faces southeast onto MLK. The first floor has a 1-story portico with 
massive brick comer piers and red-tile pent roofs on each side. The comer piers are capped 
with cast-stone coping and concrete planters ~ detaUs suggestive of the Prairie School style. 
First-floor windows are set within flat arches and include groupings of three separate double-
hung windows with single-Ught sashes. The nuddle windows are broader than those to the 
side. Fixed transoms cap the windows, and the overall effect creates a horizontal emphasis. 
The second-floor fenestration echoes that of the ground level. A single door with a fanUght 
transom opens onto the balcony atop the portico. The roof overhangs have exposed, carved, 
rafter ends, and paired wood brackets are located at each end of the eaves. Centered above 
the entrance, a low-pitched hipped dormer with multi-light-sash windows extends fi-om the 
southeast slope of the main roof. A brick chinmey rises from the northwest elevation. 

Two outbuildings are also on the property, behind the house. The larger of the two is 
a 2-story, brick-veneer, garage/apartment that is similar to the main house in its detailing, 
materials, and proportions. The building was constmcted contemporaneously with the main 
house. A small playhouse stands between the main house and the garage/apartment. An 
exact date of constmction is not known, but the materials and craftsmanship suggest a circa 
1930 constmction. Both outbuildings are in fair condition but stiU contribute to the overaU 
historic character of the property. 
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8. STATEMETfl OF SIGNIHCANCE 

APPUCABLE NATIONAL REGISTER CRITERIA 

_ A PROPERTY IS ASSOCIATED WITH EVENTS THAT HAVE MADE A SIGNIHCANT CONTRIBUTION TO THE 
BROAD PATTERNS OF OUR HISTORY. 

_ B PROPERTY IS ASSOCIATED WITH THE LIVES OF PERSONS SIGNIFICANT IN OUR PAST. 
_x_ C PROPERTY EMBODIES THE DBUNCTIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF A TYPE, PERIOD, OR METHOD OF 

CONSTRUCTION OR REPRESENTS T H E WORK OF A MASTER, OR POSSESSES HIGH ARTISTIC V A L U E , OR 

REPRESENTS A SIGNmCANT AND DISTINGUISHABLE ENTriY WHOSE COMPONENTS LACK INDIVIDUAL 
DISTINCTION. 

_ D PROPERTY HAS YIELDED, OR IS LIKELY TO YIELD, INFORMATION IMPORTANT IN PREHISTORY OR 
HISTORY. 

CRITERIA CONSIDERATIONS: N/A 

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE: Architecture 

PERIOD OF SIGNIFICANCE: C. 1914 

SiGNincANT DATES: C. 1914 

SiGNDiCANT PERSON: N/A 

CULTURAL AFFHJATION: N/A 

ARCHTTECT/BUILDER: Overbeck, H.A. 

NARRATIVE STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (see continuation sheets 8-6 tiirough 8-8). 

9. MAJOR BIBUOGRAPmC REFERENCES 

BiBUOGRAPHY (scc Section I). 
PREVIOUS DOCUMENTATION ON FILE (NPS): N/A 

_ preliminary determination of individual Usting (36 CFR 67) has been requested. 
_ previously Usted in the National Register 
_ previously determined eligible by the National Register 
_ designated a National Historic Landmark 
_ recorded by Historic American BuUdings Survey # 
_ recorded by Historic American Engineering Record # 

PRIMARY LOCATION OF AoDinoNAL DATA: 
X State historic preservation office (Texas Historical Commission) 
_ Other state agency 
_ Federal agency 
_ Local govemment 
_ University 
_ Other ~ Specify Repository: 
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Significance 

The Levi-Topletz House, designed by DaUas architect H. A. Overbeck and buUt 
c.1914, is an exceUent example of eclectic architecture from the prestigious Edgewood 
Addition (1912) in South Dallas. The Edgewood Addition was the last exclusive streetcar 
suburb developed along the Rapid Transit streetcar line that traversed South Dallas along 
Forest Avenue (now Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard [MLK]). Although MLK no longer 
retains its original streetscape to any appreciable degree, due to commercial encroachment 
and insensitive intmsion along the former streetcar route, several of its houses stand out as 
landmarks, among them the Levi-Topletz House, which is nominated under Criterion C in 
the area of Architecture at the local level. The building is associated with the historic 
context, The Development of East and South Dallas: 1872-1945. 

Residents of the Edgewood Addition included a number of Jewish merchants and 
businessmen who followed Temple Emanu-El (razed) from The Cedars, an earUer exclusive 
neighborhood. Although the Edgewood Addition was part of an earlier addition (South Park) 
platted by Martha Camp Warren in 1889, it was never developed until she replatted the 
2300-2700 blocks of South Boulevard, Park Row and Forest Avenue (now MLK), as 
Edgewood Addition in 1912. Of the three parallel streets. South Boulevard and Park Row 
experienced littie change through the years and were Usted in the National Register in 1979. 
MLK (formerly Forest Avenue), which carried the main east-west streetcar line, however, 
was subject to intensive re-development consisting of commercial buildings and multi-famUy 
apartment buildings, beginning as early as the 1920s. The lack of any restrictive covenants 
or zoning regulations served to further erode the original architectural fabric of the street. In 
addition to the deteriorating streetscape, which by the 1940s and 1950s was substantial, white 
residents of the area abandoned the neighborhood for North DaUas suburbs when the 
African-American community to the south began expanding northward into the traditionaUy 
white neighborhoods. Today, only a handful of the original grand houses survive on the 
street, among them the Levi-Topletz House, which retains its original architectural fabric to a 
remarkable degree. 

Jewish businessman, Leo S. Levi, who commissioned the plans for the Levi-Topletz 
House in 1914, was typical of Edgewood's prosperous residents in many respects, but in a 
larger sense, he and his brother Marcus were also responsible for much of the development 
and character of the addition. Around 1914, the year Leo Levi moved into his new house, 
he and Marcus, together with L. F. Munzesheimer, were partners in both the Levi Insurance 
Agency and BuUder's Investment Company. By 1915, Builder's Investment Company had 



NPS Fomi 10-900-a OMB ApprovalNo. 1024-0018 
(8-86) 

United States Department of the Interior 
National Park Service 

National Register of Historic Places 
Continuation Sheet 

Levi-Topletz House 
8 7 Historic and Architectural Resources of 

Section number Page East and Soudi Dallas - Dallas Co., TX 

been active in South Dallas real estate development for a number of years and was 
responsible for some of the medium-priced housing in the Colonial HiU and South Park 
additions, immediately west and south of Edgewood (city building permits 1905-1915). 
When the northem section of the South Park Addition was rq)latted as die Edgewood 
Addition in 1912, Builders Investment Company seized the opportunity to expand their 
business into the new addition, and it buUt more elaborate and expensive houses than it had 
previously done. Over the course of their involvement in the addition, BuUder's Investment 
Company was responsible for at least 15 residences in Edgewood, including at least five 
designed by Dallas architect H. A. Overbeck (Watson, 1981: 21). The Levi brothers buUt 
homes in the addition, lived in them temporarily, and later moved into newly constmcted 
ones. Leo Levi built his house at 2603 Forest Avenue. It was one of the first houses in the 
addition, and one of the first to front Forest Avenue, the streetcar Une. In 1919, Leo Levi 
moved to 1901 South Blvd. and tiiat same year, Marcus sold his house at 2709 South Blvd. 
and moved next door to 2707 South Blvd., where he remained for many years. The Marcus 
Levi House at 2707 South Blvd. is considered the premier house in Edgewood Addition. 
Leo moved again, to 2412 Soudi Blvd., m die 1920s. 

Dr. S. M. Freedman lived in the house vacated by Leo S. Levi from 1919 untU 
Solomon Topletz and his wife Rebecca purchased the house in 1922. Topletz was a partaer 
in the real estate loan and investment firm of Topletz and Topletz, and Bracey's plat maps of 
1937 show him as one of the largest property owners in far South DaUas. Topletz, his wife, 
and sons Jack and Harold, lived in the house from 1925 through the mid-1940s. In 1940, 
however, just east of Topletz' house, between Oakland and Jeffries streets, there were six 
commercial buildings and three large apartment complexes. As early as 1915 when the first 
houses were being built in prestigious Edgewood, apartment buUdings were constmcted along 
the streetcar line, and by the 1940s, gracious single-family dwellings along the street were 
being broken up for boarding houses or replaced by new constmction. The gradual erosion 
of Forest Avenue's single-famUy residential composition led to the near-complete 
disintegration of its architectural fabric. 

Noted DaUas architect H.A. Overijeck was responsible for the design of the Levi-
Topletz House, along with many others in the Edgewood Addition such as the nearby Levi-
Moses House. These houses are typical of Overbeck's residential work during the early 20th 
century and are among the most impressive domestic buUdings in South DaUas. Overbeck 
also was architect of several early-20th-century buUdings in downtown DaUas, many of 
which are in die West End Historic District (N.R. 1978). 
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Today, although many of the finest homes in the Edgewood Addition were sited on 
the north side of MLK, only a few remain that retain their architectural integrity. Along 
with the Levi-Moses House, at 2433 MLK, the Levi-Topletz House is among the very fmest 
houses in the Edgewood addition, which was the last exclusive development in South Dallas. 
The Levi-Topletz House is an outstanding local example of an early 20th-century domestic 
building with Italian Renaissance and Prairie School-style detaiUng, and it retains its historic 
integrity to a remarkable degree. The two outbuildings on the property, Ukewise, retain 
sufficient integrity to be classified as contributing buUdings. 
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10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA 

ACREAGE OF PROPERTY: less than one acre 

UTM REFERENCES Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing 
1 14 708860 3627500 3 ## ###### ####### 
2 nn nnnnnn nnnnnnn 4 nn nnnnnn nnnnnnn 

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION Edgewood Block, Block: 14/1291, Lot: 10 & west 30 feet of Lot 11 

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION Nomination includes all property historically associated with the resource. 

11. FORM PREPARED BY (with assistancc from Dwayne Jones, THC) 

NAME/TITLE: Daniel Hardy/Terri Myers 

ORGANIZATION: Hardy-Heck-Moore DATE: 7/91; 9/94 

STREET & NUMBER: 2112 Rio Grande Su^t TELEPHONE: (512) 478-8014 

CITY OR TOWN: Austin STATE: TX ZIP CODE: 78705 

ADDmONAL DOCUMENTATION 

CONTINUATION SHEETS 

MAPS 

PHOTOGRAPHS 

ADOmONAL ITEMS 

PROPERTY OWNER 

NAME George Foley 

STREET & NUMBER 4402 Oakland 

CITY OR TOWN Dallas 

TELEPHONE N/A 

STATE TX ZIP CODE 75215 
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REQUESTED ACTION: NOMINATION 

PROPERTY Levi--Topletz House 
NAME: 

MULTIPLE East and South Dallas MPS 
NAME: 

STATE 5c COUNTY: TEXAS, Dallas 

DATE RECEIVED: 2/22/95 DATE OF PENDING LIST: 3/07/95 
DATE OF 16TH DAY: 3/23/95 DATE OF 45TH DAY: 4/08/95 
DATE OF WEEKLY LIST: 

REFERENCE NUMBER: 95000317 

NOMINATOR: STATE 

REASONS FOR REVIEW: 

APPEAL: N DATA PROBLEM: N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: N 
OTHER: N PDIL: N PERIOD: N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: N 
REQUEST: N SAMPLE: N SLR DRAFT: N NATIONAL: N 

COMMENT WAIVER: N 

f/ACCEPT RETURN REJECT ' 2.3>-'?5DATE 

ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS: 

RECOM./CRITERIA 

REVIEWER DISCIPLINE_ 

TELEPHONE DATE 

DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR Y/N 
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